

SOC APPROVALS

September 16, 2026

The following proposals were approved at the September 16, 2026 meeting of the Subcommittee on Undergraduate Academic Courses (SOC).

FACULTY OF ARTS AND HUMANITIES

DEPARTMENT OF LANGUAGES, CULTURES, AND LINGUISTICS

Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be withdrawn:

COMPARATIVE LITERATURE AND CULTURE 1010 FROM EAST TO WEST AND NORTH TO SOUTH

Course Description

Explore the roots of today's global world through a selection of writers, artists, and works that have shaped, challenged, and connected civilizations, past and present. Study cross-cultural patterns and exchanges while on a journey of discovery that will take you from Europe to Asia, from Africa to the Americas.

Antirequisite(s): World Literatures and Cultures 1030, Comparative Literature and Culture 1050E.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours.
Course Weight: 1.00

Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be withdrawn:

INTERCULTURAL COMMUNICATIONS 1030 INTERCULTURAL COMMUNICATION AND GLOBAL AWARENESS

Course Description

Using a range of cultural artifacts, this course provides students with a framework to approach and understand the complexities of intercultural communication in diverse local, national, and international settings. Students learn how intercultural communication processes are influenced by power dynamics and develop skills to negotiate our changing world.

Extra Information: 3 hours.
Course Weight: 1.00

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**DIGITAL HUMANITIES 2150A/B
ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE-MEDIATED LANGUAGE LEARNING AND
CULTURAL FLUENCY**

(Short Title: AI-Mediated Language Learning)

Course Description

Explore language learning and cultural fluency through human-centered and agentic AI design. Students co-create AI language partners for immersive real-world scenarios while developing intercultural communication, critical AI literacy, language and learner's agency skills.

Extra Information: 1 lecture hour, 2 hours online asynchronous.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**DIGITAL HUMANITIES 3150A/B
HUMAN-CENTERED ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE DESIGN**

(Short Title: Human-Centered AI Design)

Course Description

Explore how agency operates across humans, groups, and AI systems in a world of increasingly autonomous technologies. Students critically examine agentic AI scholarship, design and build Human-Centred Agentic AI solutions tailored to pressing challenges in our London community, and apply human-AI collaboration frameworks in practice.

Prerequisite(s): 0.5 course in Digital Humanities at the 1000 or 2000 level.

Extra Information: 1 lecture hour; 2 hours asynchronous online.
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**GERMAN 4443F/G/Z
EXPERIENTIAL LEARNING IN GERMAN LANGUAGE TEACHING I**

(Short Title: Experiential German I)

Course Description

This course integrates experiential learning with language pedagogy. Students participate in lower-level courses through guided observation, peer support, and supervised classroom engagement. They assist with in-class activities and mentor fellow learners. Through readings, reflection, and discussion, they connect pedagogical theory to practice while developing transferable professional skills.

Antirequisite(s): German 3600F/G/Z.

Pre-or Corequisite(s): Permission of the department.

Extra Information: German 4443F/G/Z may be taken independently of German 4444F/G/Z. The courses are complementary but not sequential and may be taken in any order.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**GERMAN 4444F/G/Z
EXPERIENTIAL LEARNING IN GERMAN LANGUAGE TEACHING II**

(Short Title: Experiential German II)

Course Description

This course integrates experiential learning with language pedagogy. Students participate in lower-level courses through guided observation, peer support, and supervised classroom engagement. They assist with in-class activities and mentor fellow learners. Through readings, reflection, and discussion, they connect pedagogical theory to practice while developing transferable professional skills.

Antirequisite(s): German 3600F/G/Z.

Pre-or Corequisite(s): Permission of the department.

Extra Information: German 4444F/G/Z may be taken independently of German 4443F/G/Z. The courses are complementary but not sequential and may be taken in any order.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**ITALIAN 2243F/G/Z
VENICE: THE GATE TO THE EAST**

Course Description

Venice, reality and dream: glide through its canals and marvel at its magnificent palaces. Follow Marco Polo on his adventurous journeys. Unveil the mysteries behind Carnival masks. Peek into Casanova's scandals. Enter the thoughts of a Renaissance courtesan. Discover it all through visual arts, novels, plays, and films.

Antirequisite(s): World Literatures and Cultures 2243F/G/Z.

Extra Information: 2 lecture hours. Cross-listed with World Literatures and Cultures 2243F/G/Z.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**ITALIAN 4443F/G/Z
EXPERIENTIAL LEARNING IN ITALIAN LANGUAGE TEACHING I**

(Short Title: Experiential Italian I)

Course Description

This course integrates experiential learning with Italian language pedagogy. Students participate in lower-level courses through guided observation, peer support, and supervised classroom engagement. They assist with in-class activities and mentor fellow learners. Through readings, reflection, and discussion, they connect pedagogical theory to practice while developing transferable professional skills.

Antirequisite(s): Italian 3600F/G/Z.

Pre-or Corequisite(s): Italian 3300 or permission of the department.

Extra Information: Italian 4443F/G/Z may be taken independently of Italian 4444F/G/Z. The courses are complementary but not sequential and may be taken in any order.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**ITALIAN 4444F/G/Z
EXPERIENTIAL LEARNING IN ITALIAN LANGUAGE TEACHING II**

(Short Title: Experiential Italian II)

Course Description

This course integrates experiential learning with Italian language pedagogy. Students participate in lower-level courses through guided observation, peer support, and supervised classroom engagement. They assist with in-class activities and mentor fellow learners. Through readings, reflection, and discussion, they connect pedagogical theory to practice while developing transferable professional skills.

Antirequisite(s): Italian 3600F/G/Z.

Pre-or Corequisite(s): Italian 3300 or permission of the department.

Extra Information: Italian 4444F/G/Z may be taken independently of Italian 4443F/G/Z. The courses are complementary but not sequential and may be taken in any order.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**WORLD LITERATURES AND CULTURES 1033A/B
FROM EAST TO WEST AND NORTH TO SOUTH**

(Short Title: East to West, North to South)

Course Description

Explore the roots of today's global world through a selection of writers, artists, and works that have shaped, challenged, and connected civilizations past and present. Study cross-cultural patterns and exchanges while on a journey of discovery that will take you from Europe to Asia, from Africa to the Americas.

Antirequisite(s): The former CLC 1010.

Extra Information: 3 hours.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**WORLD LITERATURES AND CULTURES 1060F/G
GLOBAL AWARENESS**

Course Description

Using a range of cultural artifacts, this course provides students with a framework to approach and understand the complexities of intercultural communication in diverse local, national, and international settings. Students learn how intercultural communication processes are influenced by power dynamics and develop skills to negotiate our changing world.

Antirequisite(s): Intercultural Communications 1060F/G, the former Intercultural Communications 1030.

Extra Information: 3 hours. Cross-listed with Intercultural Communications 1060F/G.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**WORLD LITERATURES AND CULTURES 2243F/G/Z
VENICE: THE GATE TO THE EAST**

Course Description

Venice, reality and dream: glide through its canals and marvel at its magnificent palaces. Follow Marco Polo on his adventurous journeys. Unveil the mysteries behind Carnival masks. Peek into Casanova's scandals. Enter the thoughts of a Renaissance courtesan. Discover it all through visual arts, novels, plays, and films.

Antirequisite(s): Italian 2243F/G/Z.

Extra Information: 2 lecture hours. Cross-listed with Italian 2243F/G/Z.

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**INTERCULTURAL COMMUNICATIONS 1060F/G
GLOBAL AWARENESS**

Course Description

Using a range of cultural artifacts, this course provides students with a framework to approach and understand the complexities of intercultural communication in diverse local, national, and international settings. Students learn how intercultural communication processes are influenced by power dynamics and develop skills to negotiate our changing world.

Antirequisite(s): **World Literatures and Cultures 1060F/G, the former**
Intercultural Communications 1030.

Extra Information: 3 hours. **Cross-listed with World Literatures and Cultures**
1060F/G.

Course Weight: 0.50

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

MINOR IN GREEK AND LATIN LITERATURE

Admission Requirements

Completion of first-year requirements. Classical Studies 1000 is recommended.

~~With permission of the Department, students may have the Classical Studies 1000 requirement waived in those courses at the 2000-level or above for which it is normally a prerequisite.~~

Module:

4.0 courses

4.0 courses from: Classical Studies 2200, Classical Studies 2225A/B, Classical Studies 3010F/G, Classical Studies 3050F/G, ~~Classical Studies 3100E~~, Classical Studies 3102F/G, Classical Studies 3110F/G, Classical Studies 3130F/G, Classical Studies 3150F/G, Classical Studies 3151F/G, Classical Studies 3181F/G, ~~Classical Studies 3211F/G~~, ~~Classical Studies 3612F/G~~, Classical Studies 3800F/G, Classical Studies 3805F/G, Classical Studies 3850F/G, the former Classical Studies 3201F/G and no more than 1.0 course in Greek and/or Latin at the 3000-level or above.

Appropriate course substitutions, **including Special Topics courses**, may be made with the permission of Department.

Administrative Note: The above revision was included in the June 24, 2026 approvals document for the Minor in Greek and Roman Literature. The Office of the Registrar subsequently flagged that this module does not exist; the revisions were intended for the Minor in Greek and Latin Literature. The approved revisions were made administratively to the Minor in Green and Latin Literature as shown.

IVEY BUSINESS SCHOOL

Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be withdrawn:

BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION 3323K LEARNING THROUGH ACTION

Course Description

This course integrates learning from different managerial perspectives and applies those learnings to team-based deliverables. The goal is to develop further the HBA Program Leadership Essentials: decisiveness through uncertainty, communicate persuasively, manage volume, maximize team potential, and stand and deliver. Throughout the year, sessions on personal and corporate responsibility will be organized to inform the student's development in leadership and its orientation to the organization as well as communities and society in which they operate.

Extra Information: 3 hours.
Course Weight: 0.75

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION 3924U LEARNERS STUDIO

Course Description

Learners Studio supports HBA students in developing the self-awareness, judgment, attention, adaptability, agency, and leadership capacity required for case-based learning and responsible leadership practice. Through reflection, facilitated sessions, and selected Ivey Leadership Essentials activities, students connect classroom learning with personal growth, professional readiness, and constructive contribution.

Antirequisite(s): The former Business Administration 3323K.

Extra Information: Pass/fail. 8 total course hours.
Course Weight: 0.25

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION 3925U
CAREER ESSENTIALS**

Course Description

Career Essentials prepares HBA students for the changing world of work. Classes cultivate the skills needed to transition from Ivey into a first opportunity after graduation. Students develop the self-awareness, adaptive capacity, career direction, and essential skills to build a meaningful and fulfilling career into the future.

Antirequisite(s): The former Business Administration 3323K.

Extra Information: Pass/fail. 15 total course hours, including approximately 9 contact hours and 6 hours of asynchronous coursework.
Course Weight: 0.25

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION 3927U
LEARNING THROUGH ACTION**

Course Description

This experiential learning course is designed to support the understanding and application of leadership essentials through participation in a series of learning team, business case competitions and supporting class sessions.

Antirequisite(s): The former Business Administration 3323K.

Extra Information: This course consists of three, multi-day case competition periods and two 3-hour class sessions.
Course Weight: 0.25

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION 4902A/B
ADVANCED CORPORATE FINANCIAL REPORTING**

(Short Title: Advanced CFR)

Course Description

This course will prepare students to become critical users of financial statements, prepared under contemporary accounting models. It is oriented to users of financial statements and concentrates on the measurement and communication of financial data to individuals outside the firm. Students will develop a managerial perspective of financial disclosure.

Antirequisite(s): MOS 4465A/B.

Extra Information: 10 classes of 3 hours each, scheduled for once a week.
Course Weight: 0.50

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

HBA/BACHELOR OF MUSIC (HONOURS)

The combined degree programs are administered on behalf of the Richard Ivey School of Business and the Don Wright Faculty of Music.

The combined program is a five-year program leading to a Bachelor of Music (Honours) and a BA in Honours Business Administration (HBA). In Years 1 and 2, students are registered in the Bachelor of Music (Honours) in the Don Wright Faculty of Music and follow the normal curriculum for this degree. In Year 3, students are registered in the HBA program. Students are registered in the combined program in Years 4 and 5.

Admission Requirements

Students must meet normal admission requirements for both programs. Normally, students apply to the HBA program during their second year in the Bachelor of Music (Honours). Students applying to the Ivey Business School's Advanced Entry Opportunity (AEO) are also eligible to be considered for the combined program. Admission is competitive and limited.

To be eligible for consideration for admission to the combined program, in the first two years, students must complete all requirements for Years 1 and 2 of the Bachelor of Music (Honours), including Business Administration 2257. In the first two years, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 78%, a minimum mark of 70% in Business Administration 2257, and no mark less than 60%. They must also gain admission to the HBA program through the regular application process.

Program Requirements

Students registered in the combined program are expected to abide by all guidelines associated with each of the individual programs.

Module/Program Information

Year 1

Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

3.5 courses: Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

A weighted average of at least 70% and no mark less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in the non-Music course.

Year 2

Ensemble: One or more of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

3.0 courses: Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2920.

1.0 course from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course: Business Administration 2257.

Year 3 – HBA1

The third year of the undergraduate program in Business Administration consists of an integrated set of courses (7.5 courses) designed to give a basic understanding of the functions and the interrelationships of the major areas of management, as well as to develop problem-solving and action-planning skills.

All students will take: Business Administration 3300K, Business Administration 3301K, Business Administration 3302K, Business Administration 3303K, Business Administration 3304K, Business Administration 3311K, Business Administration 3316K, Business Administration 3321K, Business Administration 3322K, Business Administration 3323K.

Years 4 and 5 (5.0 Music courses and 6.0 HBA2 ~~credits~~ **courses**).

Music (5.0 Music courses must be taken over Years 4 or 5).

From Year 3 of the BMus (Honours) program:

~~Music 3924Y and~~ Ensemble*: **One or more of** (Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913), ~~or 0.5 music elective~~.

1.0 course from: (Music 3924Y and Music elective at the 2000 level or above), Music 3929, or Music elective at the 2000 level or above.

~~1.5~~ **1.0** ~~courses~~ at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

*The ensemble requirement ~~becomes~~ **is** an optional elective for ~~these~~ students not registered in **either** Music 3924Y **or Music 3929**.

From Year 4 of the BMus (Honours) Program:

~~Music 4924Y and Ensemble*~~: **One or more of** (Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913), ~~or 0.5 music elective.~~

1.0 course from: (Music 4924Y and Music elective at the 2000 level or above), Music 4929, or Music elective at the 2000 level or above.

~~1.0-2.0~~ **2.0** courses at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

~~1.5 courses from the Faculty of Music.~~

***The ensemble requirement is an optional elective for those students not registered in either Music 4924Y or Music 4929.**

Note: In the Bachelor of Music (Honours) program, no more than 8.0 courses taken may be numbered 1000 to 1999. A maximum of 1.0 course from Music 2700A/B, Music 2701A/B, Music 2702A/B, Music 2703A/B/Y, Music 2704A/B/Y, Music 2707A/B/Y, Music 2708A/B/Y, Music 2709A/B/Y, Music 2801A/B and the former Music 2171A/B/Y may be counted toward the elective courses 'from the Faculty of Music'. Additional courses from this list taken beyond the 1.0 course maximum may be counted toward the elective courses 'from any Faculty.'

HBA2

Years 4 and 5 (HBA requirements can be taken over Year 4 or 5 – except Business 4569 must be taken in Year 4).

2.5 courses:

- International Perspective Requirement: Business Administration 4505A/B (0.5 course).
- Corporations and Society Perspectives Requirement: At least one 0.5 course from Business Administration - Corporations and Society designated electives offered during the academic year (Business Administration 4538A/B, Business Administration 4539A/B, Business Administration 4588A/B, Business Administration 4625A/B) or other business elective as determined and approved by the HBA Program Director to satisfy this requirement.
- Managerial Accounting Requirement: Business Administration 4624A/B (0.5 course).
- Applied Project Requirement: Business Administration 4569 (1.0 course).

3.5 additional business electives.

Progression

Students in the combined program must meet the normal progression standards for both the Bachelor of Music (Honours) and HBA programs. Students enrolled in HBA1 (Year 3) must attain a minimum weighted average of at least 78%. In Years 4 and 5, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 75% in their 4000-level HBA2 courses. They also must attain a minimum average of 70% with no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-Music course.

Failure to Meet Progression Standards

A student who fails to meet the combined program progression standards in any year must withdraw from the combined program. However, a student who has met the progression standards of either the HBA or Bachelor of Music (Honours) program will be allowed to proceed to the next year of that program. If the progression standards of both individual programs have been satisfied, the student may continue in either program and may petition the School or Faculty whose program was not selected for permission to complete that program at a later date. A student who is required to withdraw from the combined program and wishes to pursue either of the individual programs or both programs through a concurrent degree, must complete all the degree requirements of the individual program or concurrent programs in order to graduate from that/those program(s).

Dean's Honour List

At the Richard Ivey School of Business, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during their first year of HBA. Students enrolled in Years 4 and 5 of the combined program are considered for the Dean's Honour List in Year 5 only. Only grades obtained in 4000-level Business courses will be used in calculating averages for the purposes of determination of Dean's Honour List standing. Courses taken outside the Business School are excluded. Calculations for Ivey Scholar and Gold Medals are completed in the same way.

In the Don Wright Faculty of Music, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during Years 1, 2, 4 and 5, based on achieving an average of 80% or higher, with no failed courses, during that academic year.

Graduation

Upon completion of this combined program, students will receive a Bachelor of Music (Honours) and a BA in Honours Business Administration.

Graduation with Distinction

Eligibility to graduate "With Distinction" for each degree is determined by each Faculty.

International Exchange Programs

Students in the combined HBA/Music degree program may be eligible to participate in academic exchange programs. Interested students should discuss exchange options with the HBA Program Office and Don Wright Faculty of Music.

Fees

Students pay the prevailing fees as determined by the University policy on combined programs. Contact the Office of the Registrar for details.

FACULTY OF HEALTH SCIENCES

BRESCIA SCHOOL OF FOOD AND NUTRITIONAL SCIENCES

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**FAMILY STUDIES AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT 2245A/B
HUMAN GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT: CONCEPTION TO MIDDLE
CHILDHOOD**

Course Description

This course offers a multidisciplinary approach to the study of human growth and development in a Canadian context. With chronological unfolding of developmental events, students will learn about development from conception to middle childhood in culturally and conceptually meaningful ways.

Antirequisite(s): Psychology 2040A/B, Psychology 2410A/B, Psychology 2480E and the former Psychology 2044.

Prerequisite(s): 1.0 course in Family Studies and Human Development at the 1000 level or above; or permission of the School.

Extra Information: 3.0 hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Administrative Note: Revisions to Family Studies and Human Development 2245A/B were approved via the fast-track process in July 2026. However, an error was identified where a hyphen was erroneously included in “1000-level” in the Calendar copy provided to the Office of the Registrar. The course is now being revised administratively to remove the hyphen from Calendar copy.

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**FAMILY STUDIES AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT 2260A/B
DEVELOPMENT IN ADOLESCENCE AND EMERGING ADULTHOOD**

Course Description

This course investigates middle childhood and adolescence, exploring these developmental stages as they intersect with family, society, and cultural contexts.

Prerequisite(s): 1.0 course in Family Studies and Human Development at the 1000 level or above; or permission of the School.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Administrative Note: Revisions to Family Studies and Human Development 2260A/B were approved via the fast-track process in July 2026. However, an error was identified where a hyphen was erroneously included in “1000-level” in the Calendar copy provided to the Office of the Registrar. The course is now being revised administratively to remove the hyphen from Calendar copy.

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**FAMILY STUDIES AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT 2265A/B
DEVELOPMENT IN ADULTHOOD AND AGING**

Course Description

This course investigates the midlife and elder stages of life, topics of great importance to Canadian society given the aging of the population. Areas considered may include psychological adjustment, social networks, career and family changes, health care, elder care, and adaptation to transition.

Prerequisite(s): 1.0 course in Family Studies and Human Development at the 1000 level or above; or permission of the School.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Administrative Note: Revisions to Family Studies and Human Development 2265A/B were approved via the fast-track process in July 2026. However, an error was identified where a hyphen was erroneously included in “1000-level” in the Calendar copy provided to the Office of the Registrar. The course is now being revised administratively to remove the hyphen from Calendar copy.

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**FAMILY STUDIES AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT 2300F/G
UNDERSTANDING FAMILY RESEARCH**

Course Description

Students will become familiar with the primary research methods used by Family Studies and Human Development professionals. Other topics such as research ethics will be covered.

Prerequisite(s): 1.0 course in Family Studies and Human Development at the 1000 level or above; or permission of the School.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Administrative Note: Revisions to Family Studies and Human Development 2300F/G were approved via the fast-track process in July 2026. However, an error was identified where a hyphen was erroneously included in “1000-level” in the Calendar copy provided to the Office of the Registrar. The course is now being revised administratively to remove the hyphen from Calendar copy.

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**FAMILY STUDIES AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT 3226A/B
PARENTING**

Course Description

Using parenting theory and research, this course investigates the topic of parenting in-depth, exploring relevant topics such as infant development, parent-child communication, gender socialization, discipline, and more.

Antirequisite(s): The former Family Studies and Human Development 2226A/B.

Prerequisite(s): 1.0 course in Family Studies and Human Development at the 2000 level or above; or permission of the School.

Extra Information: 3 lecture/tutorial hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Administrative Note: Revisions to Family Studies and Human Development 3226A/B were approved via the fast-track process in July 2026. However, an error was identified where a hyphen was erroneously included in “2000-level” in the Calendar copy provided to the Office of the Registrar. The course is now being revised administratively to remove the hyphen from Calendar copy.

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**FAMILY STUDIES AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT 3230A/B
QUALITATIVE RESEARCH IN FAMILY STUDIES**

Course Description

An introduction to qualitative research and its application to the study of the family. Topics to be considered include participant observation, interview skills, life histories and methods of analysis.

Antirequisite(s): Health Sciences 3811F/G, Sociology 3307F/G, Sociology 3310F/G.

Prerequisite(s): Family Studies and Human Development 2300F/G and an additional 0.5 course in Family Studies and Human Development at the 2000 level or above; or permission of the School.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Administrative Note: Revisions to Family Studies and Human Development 3230A/B were approved via the fast-track process in July 2026. However, an error was identified where a hyphen was erroneously included in “2000-level” in the Calendar copy provided to the Office of the Registrar. The course is now being revised administratively to remove the hyphen from Calendar copy.

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**FAMILY STUDIES AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT 3352A/B
HUMAN SEXUALITY ACROSS THE LIFE SPAN**

Course Description

A main focus of this course will be on sexuality throughout the lifespan with an emphasis on diversity of human sexuality using a multi-disciplinary perspective. Areas covered include intimacy and communication, sexual orientation, sexual variety, coercive sexuality and exploitation, sexual health, and ethics, religion and sexuality.

Antirequisite(s): Psychology 2075, Psychology 2076A/B.

Prerequisite(s): 1.0 course in Family Studies and Human Development at the 2000 level or above; or permission of the School.

Extra Information: 3.0 hours.

Course Weight: 0.50

Administrative Note: Revisions to Family Studies and Human Development 3352A/B were approved via the fast-track process in July 2026. However, an error was identified where a hyphen was erroneously included in “2000-level” in the Calendar copy provided to the Office of the Registrar. The course is now being revised administratively to remove the hyphen from Calendar copy.

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**FAMILY STUDIES AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT 4220A/B
THEORETICAL PERSPECTIVES IN FAMILY STUDIES RESEARCH**

Course Description

Students will be introduced to the major theoretical frameworks used by social scientists to explain variation in family life including life span, life course, developmental, social learning, social exchange, social conflict, symbolic interactionist, ecological, family systems and feminist theory perspectives.

Prerequisite(s): 1.0 course in Family Studies and Human Development at the 3000 level or above; or permission of the School.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Administrative Note: Revisions to Family Studies and Human Development 4220A/B were approved via the fast-track process in July 2026. However, an error was identified where a hyphen was erroneously included in “3000-level” in the Calendar copy provided to the Office of the Registrar. The course is now being revised administratively to remove the hyphen from Calendar copy.

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**FAMILY STUDIES AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT 4325A/B
DIVERSITY AND THE CANADIAN FAMILY**

Course Description

This course examines contemporary diversity as it impacts individuals and families. Its psychosocial intersectional approach enables students to think through their own perspectives on race, ethnicity, religion, ability, sexual and gender identity, and more in preparation for working with people from diverse backgrounds.

Antirequisite(s): The former Family Studies and Human Development 3325A/B.

Prerequisite(s): 1.0 course in Family Studies and Human Development at the 3000 level or above; or permission of the School.

Extra Information: 3 lecture/tutorial hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Administrative Note: Revisions to Family Studies and Human Development 4325A/B were approved via the fast-track process in July 2026. However, an error was identified where a hyphen was erroneously included in “3000-level” in the Calendar copy provided to the Office of the Registrar. The course is now being revised administratively to remove the hyphen from Calendar copy.

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**FAMILY STUDIES AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT 4403
PRACTICUM IN FAMILY STUDIES AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT**

Course Description

~~Supervised field placement in family-focused community organizations. Enrollment limited to third and fourth year Family Studies and Human Development students who are selected by application.~~ **This course provides students the opportunity to gain experiential learning and encompasses a supervised field placement with a focus on child, youth and family health in community settings or family-focused community organizations (school boards, non-profit organizations). Enrolment is limited to fourth year Family Studies and Human Development students.**

~~Prerequisite(s): A 3000-level Family Studies and Human Development course or permission of the instructor. Restricted to students in their 3rd or 4th year. Registration in fourth year, with a modular average of 70%. Enrolment in the Honours Specialization in Family Studies and Human Development – BA (Human Ecology), or any Honours double-major involving the Major in Family Studies and Human Development – BA (Human Ecology), or permission of the Brescia School of Food and Nutritional Sciences. Application required (see School for further information).~~

~~Extra Information: 2 seminar/practicum hours. Note: Enrollment by permission of instructor only. Please see the Family Studies website to submit an application. Enrollment is limited. Meeting the minimum requirements does not guarantee admission.~~ **Pass/Fail. Minimum of 150 experiential learning contact hours over the course of the terms in which it is offered.**

Course Weight: 1.00

FACULTY OF INFORMATION AND MEDIA STUDIES

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

MEDIA AND COMMUNICATION STUDIES 4401 SCRIPT TO SCREEN: ADVANCED DIGITAL FILM PRODUCTION

Course Description

Using a script that they have already written, students in this course will produce a polished short film ready for film festival submission. Lectures, group work, and hands-on instruction will help students further develop their abilities to produce, direct, and edit a film, from storyboards to the red carpet.

Antirequisite(s): **Film Studies 4401**; MediaCom 3430A/B if taken in 2023-24; MediaCom 3664A/B if taken in 2022-23.

Prerequisite(s): At least 0.5 courses from Film Studies 3368F/G; MediaCom 2601A/B; MediaCom 3782A/B; MediaCom 3783F/G; Writing 2204F/G; Writing 3824F/G. Students who have taken one of the following courses also meet the prerequisite: ~~MediaCom 2660A/B if taken in 2021-22~~; MediaCom 3663A/B if taken in 2020-21, 2023-24, or 2024-25; the former MediaCom 2175F/G; the former Writing 2224F/G.

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours. **Cross-listed with Film Studies 4401.**
Course Weight: 1.00

DON WRIGHT FACULTY OF MUSIC

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

MUSIC 1102A/B LISTENING TO MUSIC

Course Description

A basic course to acquaint students with the materials of music and to give a broad perspective of the history of music. Through guided listening, the student will be exposed to a wide variety of musical styles.

Antirequisite(s): Music 1710F/G or registration in any Music program/module offered by the Don Wright Faculty of Music.

Extra Information: 3 hours. ~~May not be counted for credit toward the program/module offered by the Don Wright Faculty of Music.~~

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

MUSIC 1122A/B FUNDAMENTALS OF MUSIC THEORY

Course Description

A concise introduction to music theory that will develop both practical and intellectual fluency with musical skills and concepts.

Antirequisite(s): Music 1649A/B or registration in any Music program/module offered by the Don Wright Faculty of Music.

Extra Information: 3 hours. ~~May not be counted for credit toward the program/module offered by the Don Wright Faculty of Music.~~

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**MUSIC 2104A/B
FOUNDATIONS IN SINGING**

Course Description

The techniques of singing, vocal repertoire, and performance styles introduced in a group setting. ~~Some-~~**S**olo and small group performances are assigned as determined by individual need and level of ability. Participants in this course should be able to read music.

Antirequisite(s): Registration in any Music program/module offered by the Don Wright Faculty of Music.

Extra Information: 3 hours. ~~May not be counted for credit toward the program/module offered by the Don Wright Faculty of Music.~~

Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following change(s) be made:

**MUSIC 2105A/B
BEGINNER GUITAR**

Course Description

This course will enable students with no prior musical training to develop guitar performance skills. Students will perform in a solo guitar format utilizing repertoire from a variety of musical traditions.

Antirequisite(s): ~~Music 3862A/B if taken in 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 or 2021-22.~~ **Music 2880Q/R/S/T or registration in any Music program/module offered by the Don Wright Faculty of Music.**

Extra Information: 3 hours. ~~May not be counted for credit toward the program/module offered by the Don Wright Faculty of Music.~~

Course Weight: 0.50

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

BACHELOR OF MUSIC

Admission Requirements

Six approved Grade 12U and/or M level courses including English (ENG4U) and recommendation of the Faculty on the basis of an audition and interview.

Students recommended for admission to the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs take a Common First Year as described below.

Students not recommended for admission to the Common First Year of the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs are automatically considered for admission to the first year of the BA (Music) program.

Proficiency equivalent to the Royal Conservatory of Music Level 6 Piano and Level 6 Music Theory are strongly recommended before entrance. Royal Conservatory of Music Certificates are not required. See Music 0914 under COURSES for information regarding the piano proficiency requirement.

Common First Year

Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

Module/Program Information

Second Year

Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2920.

Ensemble: One or more of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

1.0 course from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course from a Faculty other than Music.

Third Year

1.0 course from: (Music 3924Y and Music elective at the 2000 level or above), Music 3929, or Music elective at the 2000 level or above.

~~Music 3924Y and Ensemble*~~: **One or more of** (Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913), ~~or 0.5 music elective.~~

~~1.5~~ **1.0** courses at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

2.0 courses from any Faculty.

1.0 course from a Faculty other than Music.

*The ensemble requirement ~~becomes~~ **is** an optional elective for ~~those~~ students not registered in **either** Music 3924Y **or** Music 3929.

Fourth Year

1.0 course from: (Music 4924Y and Music elective at the 2000 level or above), Music 4929, or Music elective at the 2000 level or above.

~~Music 4924Y and Ensemble*~~: **One or more of** (Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913), ~~or 0.5 music elective.~~

~~1.0~~ **2.0** courses at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

~~1.5 courses from the Faculty of Music.~~

1.0 course from any Faculty.

1.0 course from a Faculty other than Music.

*The ensemble requirement ~~becomes~~ **is** an optional elective for ~~those~~ students not registered in **either** Music 4924Y **or** Music 4929.

Note: In the Bachelor of Music program, no more than 8.0 courses taken may be numbered 1000 to 1999. A maximum of 1.0 course from Music 2700A/B, Music 2701A/B, Music 2702A/B, Music 2703A/B/Y, Music 2704A/B/Y, Music 2707A/B/Y, Music 2708A/B/Y, Music 2709A/B/Y, Music 2801A/B and the former Music 2171A/B/Y may be counted toward the elective courses 'from the Faculty of Music'. Additional courses from this list taken beyond the 1.0 course maximum may be counted toward the elective courses 'from any Faculty.'

Progression Requirements

A student who at the end of an academic year has achieved a weighted average of at least 60% and a passing grade in each course of his or her approved program may progress to the next year.

The Dean may impose special conditions on future registration, or require a student to withdraw from the Faculty of Music, if that student:

1. fails to achieve the required average, or
2. fails one or more courses, or
3. fails to complete all first year requirements by the end of the second year of full-time registration.

A student required to withdraw from the Bachelor of Music program shall be required to withdraw from the University unless admitted to the Bachelor of Arts (Music) program or to another Faculty.

Graduation Requirements

Satisfactory completion of the required courses of the program, with an overall weighted average of at least 60%.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

BACHELOR OF MUSIC (HONOURS)

Admission Requirements

Six approved Grade 12U and/or M level courses including English (ENG4U) and recommendation of the Faculty on the basis of an audition and interview.

Students recommended for admission to the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs take a Common First Year as described below.

Students not recommended for admission to the Common First Year of the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs are automatically considered for admission to the first year of the BA (Music) program.

Proficiency equivalent to the Royal Conservatory of Music Level 6 Piano and Level 6 Music Theory are strongly recommended before entrance. Royal Conservatory of Music Certificates are not required. See Music 0914 under COURSES for information regarding the piano proficiency requirement.

Common First Year

Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

A weighted average of at least 70% and no mark less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in the non-Music course.

Module/Program Information

Second Year

Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2920.

Ensemble: One or more of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

1.0 course from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course from a Faculty other than Music.

Third Year

1.0 course from: (Music 3924Y and Music elective at the 2000 level or above), Music 3929, or Music elective at the 2000 level or above.

~~Music 3924Y and~~ Ensemble*: **One or more of** (Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913), ~~or 0.5 music elective.~~

~~1.5~~ **1.0** courses at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

2.0 courses from any Faculty.

1.0 course from a Faculty other than Music.

*The ensemble requirement ~~becomes~~ **is** an optional elective for ~~those~~ students not registered in **either** Music 3924Y **or** Music 3929.

Fourth Year

1.0 course from: (Music 4924Y and Music elective at the 2000 level or above), Music 4929, or Music elective at the 2000 level or above.

~~Music 4924Y and~~ Ensemble*: **One or more of** (Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913), ~~or 0.5 music elective.~~

~~1.0~~ **2.0** courses at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

~~1.5 courses from the Faculty of Music.~~

1.0 course from any Faculty.

1.0 course from a Faculty other than Music.

*The ensemble requirement ~~becomes~~ **is** an optional elective for ~~those~~ students not registered in **either** Music 4924Y **or** Music 4929.

Note: In the Bachelor of Music program, no more than 8.0 courses taken may be numbered 1000 to 1999. A maximum of 1.0 course from Music 2700A/B, Music 2701A/B, Music 2702A/B, Music 2703A/B/Y, Music 2704A/B/Y, Music 2707A/B/Y, Music 2708A/B/Y, Music 2709A/B/Y, Music 2801A/B and the former Music 2171A/B/Y may be counted toward the elective courses 'from the Faculty of Music'. Additional courses from this list taken beyond the 1.0 course maximum may be counted toward the elective courses 'from any Faculty.'

Progression and Graduation Requirements

The basic progression and graduation requirement is completion of the previous year's approved program of study, with a weighted average of at least 70% and no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-Music course.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

BACHELOR OF MUSIC (HONOURS)/HBA

The combined degree programs are administered on behalf of the Richard Ivey School of Business and the Don Wright Faculty of Music.

The combined program is a five-year program leading to a Bachelor of Music (Honours) and a BA in Honours Business Administration (HBA). In Years 1 and 2, students are registered in the Bachelor of Music (Honours) in the Don Wright Faculty of Music and follow the normal curriculum for this degree. In Year 3, students are registered in the HBA program. Students are registered in the combined program in Years 4 and 5.

Admission Requirements

Students must meet normal admission requirements for both programs. Normally, students apply to the HBA program during their second year in the Bachelor of Music (Honours). Students applying to the Ivey Business School's Advanced Entry Opportunity (AEO) are also eligible to be considered for the combined program. Admission is competitive and limited.

To be eligible for consideration for admission to the combined program, in the first two years, students must complete all requirements for Years 1 and 2 of the Bachelor of Music (Honours), including Business Administration 2257. In the first two years, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 78%, a minimum mark of 70% in Business Administration 2257, and no mark less than 60%. They must also gain admission to the HBA program through the regular application process.

Program Requirements

Students registered in the combined program are expected to abide by all guidelines associated with each of the individual programs.

Module/Program Information

Year 1

Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

3.5 courses: Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

0.5 course from any Faculty.
0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

A weighted average of at least 70% and no mark less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in the non-Music course.

Year 2

Ensemble: One or more of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

3.0 courses: Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2920.

1.0 course from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course: Business Administration 2257.

Year 3 – HBA1

The third year of the undergraduate program in Business Administration consists of an integrated set of courses (7.5 courses) designed to give a basic understanding of the functions and the interrelationships of the major areas of management, as well as to develop problem-solving and action-planning skills.

All students will take: Business Administration 3300K, Business Administration 3301K, Business Administration 3302K, Business Administration 3303K, Business Administration 3304K, Business Administration 3311K, Business Administration 3316K, Business Administration 3321K, Business Administration 3322K, Business Administration 3323K.

Years 4 and 5 (5.0 Music courses and 6.0 HBA2 ~~credits~~ **courses**).

Music (5.0 Music courses must be taken over Years 4 or 5).

From Year 3 of the BMus (Honours) program:

~~Music 3924Y and~~ Ensemble*: **One or more of** (Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913), ~~or 0.5 music elective~~.

1.0 course from: (Music 3924Y and Music elective at the 2000 level or above), Music 3929, or Music elective at the 2000 level or above.

~~1.5~~ **1.0** ~~courses~~ at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

*The ensemble requirement ~~becomes~~ **is** an optional elective for ~~these~~ students not registered in **either** Music 3924Y **or Music 3929**.

From Year 4 of the BMus (Honours) Program:

~~Music 4924Y and Ensemble*~~: **One or more of** (Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913), ~~or 0.5 music elective.~~

1.0 course from: (Music 4924Y and Music elective at the 2000 level or above), Music 4929, or Music elective at the 2000 level or above.

~~1.0~~ **2.0** courses at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

~~1.5 courses from the Faculty of Music.~~

***The ensemble requirement is an optional elective for those students not registered in either Music 4924Y or Music 4929.**

Note: In the Bachelor of Music (Honours) program, no more than 8.0 courses taken may be numbered 1000 to 1999. A maximum of 1.0 course from Music 2700A/B, Music 2701A/B, Music 2702A/B, Music 2703A/B/Y, Music 2704A/B/Y, Music 2707A/B/Y, Music 2708A/B/Y, Music 2709A/B/Y, Music 2801A/B and the former Music 2171A/B/Y may be counted toward the elective courses 'from the Faculty of Music'. Additional courses from this list taken beyond the 1.0 course maximum may be counted toward the elective courses 'from any Faculty.'

HBA2

Years 4 and 5 (HBA requirements can be taken over Year 4 or 5 – except Business 4569 must be taken in Year 4).

2.5 courses:

- International Perspective Requirement: Business Administration 4505A/B (0.5 course).
- Corporations and Society Perspectives Requirement: At least one 0.5 course from Business Administration - Corporations and Society designated electives offered during the academic year (Business Administration 4538A/B, Business Administration 4539A/B, Business Administration 4588A/B, Business Administration 4625A/B) or other business elective as determined and approved by the HBA Program Director to satisfy this requirement.
- Managerial Accounting Requirement: Business Administration 4624A/B (0.5 course).
- Applied Project Requirement: Business Administration 4569 (1.0 course).

3.5 additional business electives.

Progression

Students in the combined program must meet the normal progression standards for both the Bachelor of Music (Honours) and HBA programs. Students enrolled in HBA1 (Year 3) must attain a minimum weighted average of at least 78%. In Years 4 and 5, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 75% in their 4000-level HBA2 courses. They also must attain a minimum average of 70% with no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-Music course.

Failure to Meet Progression Standards

A student who fails to meet the combined program progression standards in any year must withdraw from the combined program. However, a student who has met the progression standards of either the HBA or Bachelor of Music (Honours) program will be allowed to proceed to the next year of that program. If the progression standards of both individual programs have been satisfied, the student may continue in either program and may petition the School or Faculty whose program was not selected for permission to complete that program at a later date. A student who is required to withdraw from the combined program and wishes to pursue either of the individual programs or both programs through a concurrent degree, must complete all the degree requirements of the individual program or concurrent programs in order to graduate from that/those program(s).

Dean's Honour List

At the Richard Ivey School of Business, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during their first year of HBA. Students enrolled in Years 4 and 5 of the combined program are considered for the Dean's Honour List in Year 5 only. Only grades obtained in 4000-level Business courses will be used in calculating averages for the purposes of determination of Dean's Honour List standing. Courses taken outside the Business School are excluded. Calculations for Ivey Scholar and Gold Medals are completed in the same way.

In the Don Wright Faculty of Music, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during Years 1, 2, 4 and 5, based on achieving an average of 80% or higher, with no failed courses, during that academic year.

Graduation

Upon completion of this combined program, students will receive a Bachelor of Music (Honours) and a BA in Honours Business Administration.

Graduation with Distinction

Eligibility to graduate "With Distinction" for each degree is determined by each Faculty.

International Exchange Programs

Students in the combined HBA/Music degree program may be eligible to participate in academic exchange programs. Interested students should discuss exchange options with the HBA Program Office and Don Wright Faculty of Music.

Fees

Students pay the prevailing fees as determined by the University policy on combined programs. Contact the Office of the Registrar for details.

FACULTY OF SCIENCE

Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be withdrawn:

SCIENCE 3999A/B/Y EXPERIENTIAL LEARNING

Course Description

Experiential- or service-learning (learning through practical experience) opportunities such as Western Heads East, which result in tangible and quantifiable academic value, may be recognized for course credit. Students must pre-apply for conditional approval. See note for details.

Antirequisite(s): Experiential learning courses offered through any other Faculty.

Prerequisite(s): Registration in the Faculty of Science or Schulich School of Medicine & Dentistry, permission of the Dean of the Faculty/School.

Extra Information: Pass/Fail. NOTE: Academic credit will be given for the course in the same academic year in which approval was given. Students must consult with the Dean of the Faculty/School (or designate) prior to departure and present a detailed study/research/work plan. The Dean, in consultation with appropriate departmental advisers (if necessary) will provide the student with detailed criteria which must be fulfilled in order to gain credit for the course. These criteria (in the form of a `contract` to be signed by the student and the Dean), may include, but are not limited to: a detailed report of results (with a specified format/length), a detailed diary or electronic submission, a reflection on the learning experience, an oral presentation to peers and faculty. A deadline date for submission will also be specified. The student will report to the Dean upon return or completion of the experience. No credit will be given without prior approval of the Dean and a failing grade will be assigned if students do not fulfill the pre-approved reporting arrangement. A 'lab course' credit may be given under appropriate circumstances as determined by the Dean. This course may not be used as a substitute for any other course offered by the Faculty of Science, but will count towards the 15.0 or 20.0 courses required for graduation. Course Weight: 0.50

DEPARTMENT OF CHEMISTRY

Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2026, the following course be introduced:

**CHEMISTRY 3340A/B
RADIATION, NUCLEAR, AND RADIOPHARMACEUTICAL CHEMISTRY**

(Short Title: Radiation & Nuclear Chemistry)

Course Description

An introduction to the chemical principles of nuclear transformations, radiation–matter interactions, and radiopharmaceuticals. Topics include nuclear decay, radiation detection, radiochemical methods, and applications of nuclear chemistry in energy production, medical imaging and therapy, and environmental monitoring, with emphasis on radiochemical techniques and radiation safety.

Prerequisite(s): Chemistry 1301A/B and (Chemistry 1302A/B or Integrated Science 1001X).

Extra Information: 3 lecture hours.
Course Weight: 0.50

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN CHEMISTRY

This honours module builds on the Major module in Chemistry, and allows a student to specialize in a particular area of chemistry. This module includes Chemistry 4491E, an independent research project in which the student works in one of the research laboratories in the Department of Chemistry, typically during the final year of study.

Admission Requirements

~~Completion of first year requirements with no failures. Students must have an average of at least 70% in 3.0 principal courses, with no mark less than 60% in any course including:~~ **Completion of first-year requirements with no course failures, including the 3.0 principal courses listed below. These principal courses must be completed with a minimum average of 70% and a minimum mark of 60% in each.**

1.0 course: Chemistry 1301A/B, Chemistry 1302A/B.

1.0 course from: (Physics 1201A/B or Physics 1401A/B or Physics 1501A/B or the former Physics 1028A/B or the former Physics 1301A/B) and (Physics 1202A/B or Physics 1402A/B or Physics 1502A/B or the former Physics 1029A/B or the former Physics 1302A/B).

1.0 course from: (Calculus 1000A/B or Calculus 1500A/B or Numerical and Mathematical Methods 1412A/B or the former Applied Mathematics 1412A/B) and (Applied Mathematics 1201A/B or Calculus 1301A/B or Calculus 1501A/B or Mathematics 1600A/B or Mathematics 1700A/B or Mathematics 1229A/B or Numerical and Mathematical Methods 1411A/B or Numerical and Mathematical Methods 1414A/B or the former Applied Mathematics 1411A/B or the former Applied Mathematics 1414A/B), or the former Applied Mathematics 1413.

Note: Physics 1101A/B with a minimum mark of 80% can be used ~~to replace in place of~~ Physics 1201A/B.

Module

10.0 courses:

4.0 courses: Chemistry 2271A, Chemistry 2272F, Chemistry 2273A, Chemistry 2274A (or the former Chemistry 2374A), Chemistry 2281G, Chemistry 2283G, Chemistry 2284B (or the former Chemistry 2384B), Chemistry 2370A/B (or the former Chemistry 3370A/B).

1.5 courses from: Chemistry 3320A/B, Chemistry 3371F, Chemistry 3372F/G,

Chemistry 3373F.

0.5 course from: Biochemistry 2280A, Chemistry 3391A/B, Chemistry 4493A/B.

2.5 courses from: Chemistry courses not already taken at the 3000 level or above (at least 1.0 of which must be at the 4000 level, or at least 0.5 course at the 4000 level if Chemistry 4493A/B is chosen from the list above), any 0.5 course at the 2000-level or above from Calculus, Applied Mathematics or Mathematics.

1.5 course: Chemistry 4491E.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

SPECIALIZATION IN CHEMISTRY

This module builds on the Major in Chemistry, and allows the choice of specializing in a particular area of chemistry. This module includes Chemistry 4491E, an independent research project in which the student works in one of the research laboratories in the Department of Chemistry, typically in the final year of study. This module is identical to the Honours Specialization in Chemistry module but does not require a minimum 70% average.

Admission Requirements

~~Completion of first year requirements, including the following 3.0 courses with no mark less than 60%:~~ **Completion of first-year requirements, including the following 3.0 principal courses with a minimum mark of 60% in each.**

1.0 course: Chemistry 1301A/B, Chemistry 1302A/B.

1.0 course from: (Physics 1201A/B or Physics 1401A/B or Physics 1501A/B or the former Physics 1028A/B or the former Physics 1301A/B) and (Physics 1202A/B or Physics 1402A/B or Physics 1502A/B or the former Physics 1029A/B or the former Physics 1302A/B).

1.0 course from: (Calculus 1000A/B or Calculus 1500A/B or Numerical and Mathematical Methods 1412A/B or the former Applied Mathematics 1412A/B) and (Applied Mathematics 1201A/B or Calculus 1301A/B or Calculus 1501A/B or Mathematics 1600A/B or Mathematics 1700A/B or Mathematics 1229A/B or Numerical and Mathematical Methods 1411A/B or Numerical and Mathematical Methods 1414A/B or the former Applied Mathematics 1411A/B or the former Applied Mathematics 1414A/B), or the former Applied Mathematics 1413.

Note: Physics 1101A/B with a minimum mark of 80% can be used ~~to replace~~ **in place of** Physics 1201A/B.

Module

10.0 courses:

4.0 courses: Chemistry 2271A, Chemistry 2272F, Chemistry 2273A, Chemistry 2274A (or the former Chemistry 2374A), Chemistry 2281G, Chemistry 2283G, Chemistry 2284B (or the former Chemistry 2384B), Chemistry 2370A/B (or the former Chemistry 3370A/B).

1.5 courses from: Chemistry 3320A/B, Chemistry 3371F, Chemistry 3372F/G, Chemistry 3373F.

0.5 courses from: Biochemistry 2280A, Chemistry 3391A/B, Chemistry 4493A/B.

2.5 courses from: Chemistry courses not already taken at the 3000 level or

above (at least 1.0 of which must be at the 4000 level, or at least 0.5 course at the 4000 level if Chemistry 4493A/B is chosen from the list above), any 0.5 course at the 2000-level or above from Calculus, Applied Mathematics or Mathematics.

1.5 course: Chemistry 4491E.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

MAJOR IN CHEMISTRY

This module forms the core material of those degrees which have Chemistry as a main designation. It is designed to give a foundation in all areas of Chemistry without the need to specialize in any one of them.

Admission Requirements

~~Completion of first-year requirements, including the following 3.0 courses with no mark less than 60%:~~ **Completion of first-year requirements, including the following 3.0 principal courses with a minimum mark of 60% in each.**

1.0 course: Chemistry 1301A/B, Chemistry 1302A/B.

1.0 course from: (Physics 1201A/B or Physics 1401A/B or Physics 1501A/B or the former Physics 1028A/B or the former Physics 1301A/B) and (Physics 1202A/B or Physics 1402A/B or Physics 1502A/B or the former Physics 1029A/B or the former Physics 1302A/B).

1.0 course from: (Calculus 1000A/B or Calculus 1500A/B or Numerical and Mathematical Methods 1412A/B or the former Applied Mathematics 1412A/B) and (Applied Mathematics 1201A/B or Calculus 1301A/B or Calculus 1501A/B or Mathematics 1600A/B or Mathematics 1700A/B or Mathematics 1229A/B or Numerical and Mathematical Methods 1411A/B or Numerical and Mathematical Methods 1414A/B or the former Applied Mathematics 1411A/B or the former Applied Mathematics 1414A/B), or the former Applied Mathematics 1413.

Note: Physics 1101A/B with a minimum mark of 80% can be used ~~to replace in place of~~ Physics 1201A/B.

Module

6.0 courses:

4.0 courses: Chemistry 2271A, Chemistry 2272F, Chemistry 2273A, Chemistry 2274A (or the former Chemistry 2374A), Chemistry 2281G, Chemistry 2283G, Chemistry 2284B (or the former Chemistry 2384B), Chemistry 2370A/B (or the former Chemistry 3370A/B).

2.0 courses from: Chemistry courses not already taken at the 3000 level or above. Students who consider switching to (Honours) Specialization in Chemistry or to Honours Specialization in Biochemistry and Chemistry should select those 2.0 courses that would meet the requirements of the intended specialization module.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

MINOR IN CHEMISTRY

This minor is intended for students who are not in Chemistry, particularly those in Biology and Health Sciences, Biochemistry, Materials Science, or those looking for a second teachable for Teacher's College.

This minor cannot be taken in combination with any other module offered by the Department of Chemistry.

Admission Requirements

~~Completion of first-year requirements, including the following 2.0 courses with no mark less than 60% in any course:~~ **Completion of first-year requirements, including the following 2.0 principal courses with a minimum mark of 60% in each.**

1.0 course: Chemistry 1301A/B and Chemistry 1302A/B.

1.0 course from: (Calculus 1000A/B or Calculus 1500A/B or Numerical and Mathematical Methods 1412A/B or the former Applied Mathematics 1412A/B) and (Applied Mathematics 1201A/B or Calculus 1301A/B or Calculus 1501A/B or Mathematics 1600A/B or Mathematics 1229A/B or Numerical and Mathematical Methods 1411A/B or Numerical and Mathematical Methods 1414A/B or the former Applied Mathematics 1411A/B or the former Applied Mathematics 1414A/B), or the former Applied Mathematics 1413.

Module

4.0 courses:

2.0 courses: Chemistry 2211A/B, Chemistry 2213A/B, Chemistry 2214A/B, Chemistry 2272F.

2.0 courses from: Chemistry 2210A/B, Chemistry 2223B, Chemistry 2370A/B, Chemistry 3300A/B, Chemistry 3320A/B, Chemistry 3330A/B, **Chemistry 3340A/B**, Chemistry 3364A/B, Chemistry 3393A/B.

Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2026, the following changes be made:

HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN BIOCHEMISTRY AND CHEMISTRY

This module provides a balance between core Chemistry and Biochemistry. It includes a course which is an independent research project, in which the student works in a research laboratory in one of the Departments of Chemistry or Biochemistry, typically during the final year of study. This module can be completed only within a BSc (Hons) degree.

Admission Requirements

~~Completion of first year requirements with no failures. Students must have an average of at least 70% in 3.0 principal courses with no mark less than 60% in any course, including:~~ **Completion of first-year requirements with no course failures, including the 4.0 principal courses listed below. These principal courses must be completed with a minimum average of 70% and a minimum mark of 60% in each.**

1.0 course: Chemistry 1301A/B, Chemistry 1302A/B.

1.0 course: Biology 1001A, Biology 1002B.

1.0 course from: (Calculus 1000A/B or Calculus 1500A/B or Numerical and Mathematical Methods 1412A/B or the former Applied Mathematics 1412A/B); and (Applied Mathematics 1201A/B or Calculus 1301A/B or Calculus 1501A/B, or Mathematics 1600A/B or Mathematics 1700A/B or Mathematics 1229A/B or Numerical and Mathematical Methods 1411A/B or Numerical and Mathematical Methods 1414A/B or the former Applied Mathematics 1411A/B or the former Applied Mathematics 1414A/B), or the former Applied Mathematics 1413.

1.0 course from: (Physics 1201A/B or Physics 1401A/B or Physics 1501A/B or the former Physics 1028A/B or the former Physics 1301A/B) and (Physics 1202A/B or Physics 1402A/B or Physics 1502A/B or the former Physics 1029A/B or the former Physics 1302A/B). ~~(This 1.0 course is required but is not considered to be a principal course.)~~

~~Note: Biology 1201A with a minimum mark of 70% can be used to replace Biology 1001A, and Biology 1202B with a minimum mark of 70% can be used to replace Biology 1002B.~~

Note: Physics 1101A/B with a minimum mark of 80% can be used ~~to replace in~~ **place of** Physics 1201A/B.

Module

11.0 courses:

4.0 courses: Chemistry 2271A, Chemistry 2272F, Chemistry 2273A, Chemistry 2274A (or the former Chemistry 2374A), Chemistry 2281G, Chemistry 2283G, Chemistry 2284B (or the former Chemistry 2384B), Chemistry 2370A/B (or the former Chemistry 3370A/B).

1.0 course from: Chemistry 3320A/B, Chemistry 3371F, Chemistry 3372F/G, Chemistry 3373F.

1.0 course from: Chemistry courses not already taken at the 3000 level or above.

2.5 courses: Biology 2581A/B, Biochemistry 2280A, Biochemistry 3380G, Biochemistry 3381A, Biochemistry 3382A.

1.0 course from: **Biochemistry 4405A/B**, Biochemistry 4410A, Biochemistry 4415B, Biochemistry 4420A, Biochemistry 4425B, Biochemistry 4450A, the former Biochemistry 4463B.

1.5 courses from: Chemistry 4491E, (Biochemistry 4985E and Biochemistry 4986Y), the former Biochemistry 4483E.